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I NATURE OF THE CASE

1. This is an individual and class action brought by plaintiff, Patty YOUNG
individually and on behalf of other similarly situated non-white employees (“the Class™)
against defendants CITY OF CHICAGO DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
(“CDOT” or “the Department™) and a municipal corporation and certain of its past and/or
present Commissioners and policy makers, to remedy discrimination and harassment on
the basis of race and retaliation in violation of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended,
42 U.S.C. 2000e, et seq., (“Title VII”), and 42 U.S.C. 1981 (“Section 19817), and 42
U.S.C. 1983 (“Section 1983™). Plaintiff seeks declaratory and injunctive relief,
compensatory and punitive damages, attorneys’ fees, costs and other appropriate legal
and equitable relief.

2. Plaintiff, Patty Young (hereinafter "YOUNG"), individually, and the Class
members, are each persons who are and/or have been subjected to a hostile, offensive and
intimidating work environment based upon race and retaliation while working for
defendant CDOT’s office located at 2350 W. Ogden, Chicago, Illinois (“the Ogden
office”). The discrimination, hostile work environment and disparate treatment, which
exists throughout the entire Ogden office and pervades the culture of CDOT, altered the
terms and conditions of plaintiff’s and the Class members’ employment.

3. Plaintiff and numerous other non-white employees, including Class
members, have been subjected to persistent racial and ethnic derogatory slurs, epithets,
segregation, and retaliation for complaining about discrimination, and their claims of
harassment, discrimination and retaliation have been ignored or rejected by the
Commissioners of, or other members of upper management at, CDOT.

4. CDOT is responsible for condoning and also perpetuating a hostile work
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environment and disparate treatment based upon race. On numerous occasions, members
of CDOT management have engaged in discriminatory and harassing behavior and have
permitted white employees to harass plaintiff and members of the Class without
reprimand. CDOT has consistently failed to report or stop the complained of behavior
and conduct, allowing the offensive and oppressive environment in which plaintiff and
members of the Class have worked, or continue to work, to persist. CDOT has been and
continues to be aware of the existence of the hostile work environment, disparate
treatment and the other discriminatory acts committed against non-white employees on a
regular basis.

5. Plaintiff and members of the Class have requested that the hostile work
environment and disparate treatment stop and have complained to various City officials,
including but not limited to the Commissioners of CDOT, but CDOT has either been
unresponsive, waited an unreasonable length of time before responding, or forced
plaintiff and members of the Class to confront the harasser directly, causing intimidation
and retaliation, and without any apbropriate repercussions to the harassers. The
Commissioners of CDOT have failed to stop or prevent the racial harassment and
discrimination.

II. JURISDICTION AND VENUE

6. This court has jurisdiction of this case pursuant to 42 U.S.C. §§1981, and
1983, and 42 U.S.C. §2000e, et seq, as amended by the Civil Rights Act of 1991, and 28

U.S.C. §§1331, 1343(4) and 1367.

7. This action properly lies in this district pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §1391

because the claims arose in this judicial district.

w2
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III. PROCEDUAL REQUIREMENTS

8. Plaintiff, Patty Young, has complied with all administrative prerequisites
by filing with the Equal a timely Charge of Discrimination based on race, sex and
retaliation on or around January 23, 2007, a Charge of Discrimination based upon
retaliation on July 25, 2007, and a Charge of Discrimination based upon retaliation on or
around March 12, 2009. A copy of the Charges of Discrimination is attached hereto as
Group Exhibit A. |

9. On September 30, 2009, John P. Rowe, District Director of the EEOC
issued a Determination on the merits of plaintiff’s above-mentioned Charges of
Discrimination, attached hereto as Exhibit B. The EEOC determined, inter alia, that
CDOT discriminated against classes of employees because of their national origin or race
(Ex. B).

10. On or about November 18, 2009, Plaintiff YOUNG received her Notices
of Right to Sue, attached hereto as Group Exhibit C.
IV. PARTIES

A. Plaintiff

11.  Plaintiff, Patty Young, is citizen of the United States and presently resides
in the City of Chicago, County of Cook, State of Illinois. Plaintiff YOUNG is female
and Black, and was hired by CDOT on or around April 18, 1989, as a Field Service
Specialist II. ' YOUNG’s current position with CDOT is Field Service Specialist III and
YOUNG has worked at the Ogden office since on or before January of 2005.

B. Defendants

12.  Defendant CITY OF CHICAGO DEPARTMENT OF

TRANSPORTATION (hereinafter "CDOT" or “the Department”) is an Illinois municipal
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corporation, doing business in, and maintaining an office at 2350 W. Ogden and 30 N.
LaSalle Street in the City of Chicago, State of Illinois. CDOT is engaged in an industry
affecting commerce and, at all times pertinent hereto, was an employer within the
meaning of 42 U.S.C. §2000e(b). Defendant CITY OF CHICAGO DEPARTMENT OF
TRANSPORTATION The (CDOT) is responsible for a variety of services, including city
street, alley, sidewalk, and curb and gutter construction; bridge maintenance; public way
inspections; signs and pavement markings; planter and median maintenance; bicycle and
pedestrian programs; and ground-transportation planning.

13.  Defendant JOSEPH ANNUNZIO (“ANNUNZIO”) is a White citizen of
the United States and resident of the State of Illinois. At all relevant times hereto,
ANNUNZIO was an agent, servant and/or employee of CDOT, within the meaning of 42
U.S.C. §2000e(b), and was employed by CDOT as a Field Service Supervisor and then
Field Director at the Ogden office. Upon information and belief, at all relevant times,
ANNUNZIO possessed and was delegated final policymaking authority for pefsonnel
issues arising within the Department of Trénsportation at the Ogden office.

14. Defendant CHERILYN HERAMB (“HERAMB?”) is a citizen of the
United States and fesident of the State of Illinois. At all relevant times hereto, HERAMB
was an agent, servant and/or employee of CDOT, within the meaning of 42 U.S.C.
§2000e(b), and was employed by CDOT as the Acting Commissioner. Upon information
and belief, at all relevant times, HERAMB possessed and was delegated final
policymaking authority for personnel issues arising within the Department of
Trénsportation at the Ogden office.

15.  Defendant VICTOR MORANO, is a citizen of the United States and

resident of the State of Illinois. At all relevant times hereto, MORANO was an agent,
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servant and/or employee of CDOT, within the meaning of 42 U.S.C. §2000e(b), and was
employed by CDOT as a Deputy Commissioner of Chicago Department of
Transportation Infrastructure Management. Upon information and belief, at all relevant
times, MORANO possessed and was delegated final policymaking authority for
personnel issués arfsing within the Department of Transportation at the Ogden office.

.16. Defendant TOM CARNEY, is a citizen of the United States and resident
of the State of Illinois. At all relevant timés hereto, CARNEY is, and was, an agent,
servant and/or employee of CDOT, within the meaning of 42 U.S.C. §2000e(b), and was
employed by CDOT as a Project Administrator in the Chicago Department of
Transportation Infrastructure Management. Upon information and belief, at all relevant
times, CARNEY possessed and was delegated final policymaking authority for personnel
issues arising within the Department of Transportation at the Ogden office.

17. Defendant THOMAS BYRNE, is a citizen of the United States and
resident of the State of Illinois. At all relevant times hereto, BYRNE is, and was, an
agent, servant and/or employee of CDOT, within the meaning of 42 U.S.C. §2000e(b),
and was employed by CDOT as a Commissioner of the Department of Transportation
Infrastructure Management. Upon information and belief, at all relevant times, BYRNE
possessed and was delegated final policymaking authority for personnel issues arising
within the Department of Transportation at the Ogden office.

18.  Defendant THOMAS POWERS is a citizen of the United States and
resident of the State of Illinois. At all relevant times hereto, POWERS is, and was an
agent, servant and/or employee of CDOT, within the meaning of 42 U.S.C. §2000e(b),
and was employed by CDOT as a First Deputy Commissioner of the Department of

Transportation Infrastructure Management, and is currently the Acting Commissioner.
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Upon information and belief, at all relevant times, POWERS possessed and was
delegated final policymaking authority for personnel issues arising within the Department
of Transportation &t the Ogden office.

19. Defendant ROBERT WARE is a citizen of the United States and resident
of the State of Illinois. At all relevant times hereto, WARE is, and was an agent, servant
and/or employee of CDOT, within the meaning of 42 U.S.C. §2000e(b), and was
employed by CDOT as a Managing Deputy Commission of the Department of
Transportation Infrastructure Management, and is currently the Acting First Deputy
Commissioner. Upon information and belief, at all relevant times, WARE possessed and
was delegated final policymaking authority for personnel issues arising within the
Department of Transportation at the Ogden office.

V. FACTUAL ALLEGATIONS

20.  Plaintiff and the Class have been and continue to be victims of a pattern
and practice of race discrimination and harassment, disparate treatment on the terms and
conditions of employment based upon race, and retaliation for complaining about
discrimination and harassment, while employed at CDOT.

21. Specifically, beginning in or around January of 2005 and continuing until
in or around early November of 2006, ANNUNZIO continually and on a daily basis,
commonly in the presence of multiple CDOT employees, engaged in racial
discriminatory and harassing behavior in the workplace that included but is not limited
to:

a. verbally referring to and addressing black co-workers and employees as
“Nigger” and “Mambo Gorilla™;

b. verbally referring to and addressing black female co-workers and
employees as “Black Bitch™;
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c. verbally referring to and addressing Asian, Indian and Hispanic co-
workers and employees as “fucking foreigners™;

d. mimicking the accents and/or appearances of Black, Hispanic, Asian, and
Indian co-workers and employees;

e. draping a cloth over his head and warning black co-workers and
employees that he was the Grand Wizard of the Ku Klux Klan (KKXK);

f. singing the theme song from the cartoon, “Magilla Gorilla” while
imitating a gorilla in the presence of Black and other non-white employees

and co-workers;

g. making pretend gang member gestures to and/or in the presence of Black
and other non-white employees and co-workers; and

h. other racist, derogatory and/or disparaging remarks about co-workers and
employees.

22.  Each of these comments, remarks or gestures was not an isolated incident
but is an example of the types of discriminatory and racially charged comments and
conduct by ANNUNZIO that were an everyday occurrence at CDOT during the relevant
period of his tenure.

23.  Beginning in or around January of 2005 and continuing to the present,
Black and other non-white employees, including plaintiff and Class members have been
and still are assigned to work only in the South side wards of the City of Chicago, and are
not assigned to work in wards on the North side of the City of Chicago.

24. CDOT’s above-mentioned segregated ward assignments adversely affect
the Black and other non-white employees’ terms and conditions of employment in that
Black and other non-white employees, including plaintiff and the Class members who
work in the South side wards, are denied opportunities for promotion, and thus wage
and/or salary increases, that are available to similarly situated non-Black employees who

are assigned to work in the North side wards. Additionally, and based upon the
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segregated ward assignments, Black and other non-white employees are forced to work in
high crime, gang-infested neighborhoods in Chicago’s South side, whereas similarly
situated non-Black employees are assigned to work in safer, more financially affluent
neighborhoods on the North side.

25. Beginning in or around January of 2005 and continuing to the present,
Black employees at the Ogden Office, including plaintiff and the Class, have been and
are segregated from non-Black employees in the workplace in that they are assigned to
work at desks that are separate and isolated from non-Black employees.

26. On or around June of 2006, CDOT by and through its agent, servant and
employee, ANNUNZIO instituted new office hours for CDOT employees at the Ogden
Office, requiring the Black employees, including plaintiff and Class members to work in
the office on Monday frdm 1:00 p.m. to 4:00 p.m. and Wednesday from 7:30 a.m. to
10:30 am. As a result of ANNUZIO’s implemented office hours, CDOT’s Black
employees, including plaintiff and Class members were and continue to be segregated
from the non-Black employees during the workweek.

27. Plaintiff and Class members have repeatedly complained several times and
on numerous occasions, including about ANNUNZIO’s above-mentioned discriminatory
and harassing behavior, including, but not limited, to:

a. on January 26, 2005, to CDOT Commissioner Miguel D’Escoto
(“D’Escoto”), VICTOR MORANO and TOM CARNEY;

b. on June 6, 2006, to Commissioner CHERILYN HERAMB, MORANO,
ROBERT WARE, Ron Hubberman, to the Office of Chicago Mayor
Richard M. Daley and the Inspector General;

c. on October 21, 2006, to all of the City Alderman;

d. on or around November 3, 2006 to HERAMB, WARE, Local Union
1001, and to the Office of Chicago Mayor Richard M. Daley; and
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€. on January 16, 2007 to the Office of Chicago Mayor Richard M. Daley;

28. Thus, at all relevant times, the existence and severity of the racial
harassment and discrimination was fully known by CDOT.

29.  Defendants failed to take any immediate corrective action, and the above-
mentioned discriminatory and harassing behavior continued.

30. CDOT began a course of retaliation against plaintiff and Class members
for their complaints of discrimination and harassment, that included but is not limited to
adversely affecting the terms and conditions of plaintiff’s and Class member’s
employment.

31. Upon information and belief, D’Escoto, MORANO, HERAMB, WARE
and CARNEY all possessed and/or were delegated final policymaking authority by the
City of Chicago with regard to personnel issues within CDOT. D’Escoto, MORANO,
HERAMB, WARE and CARNEY never responded to plaintiff’s complaints and thereby
approved, condoned and/or turned a blind eye to the discrimination and harassment taken
by ANNUNZIO and described, herein, and ANNUNZIO’s complained of behavior
continued. Because CDOT, by and through its agents, servants and employees, D’Escoto,
MORANO, HERAMB, WARE, CARNEY and ANNUNZIO, have routinely ignored and
permitted the foregoing discriminatory, harassing and retaliatory behavior, plaintiff and
Class members feel they simply have to put up with this type of behavior.

32. CDOT and MORANO, HERAMB, WARE, POWERS and CARNEY
each acted with discriminatory and retaliatory intent with regard to the plaintiff,

individually, and the Class members, and the events described herein.

10
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33. The race discrimination, harassment and retaliation, and CDOT’s failure
to prevent it interfered with and made it impossible for plaintiff and Class members to
perform their duties and responsibilities.

34.  As aresult of the unlawful and willful acts complained of herein, plaintiff
individually and Class members have suffered loss of wages and other compensation, as
well as severe emotional distress, embarrassment, humiliation, and mental anguish.

VI. CLASS ALLEGATIONS
35.  Plaintiff sues on her own behalf and on behalf of a class of persons under

Rule 23(a) and (b)(2) and (b)(3) of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure defined as

follows:

All non-White (Black, Hispanic, Asian, Indian, and Middle Eastern)
persons employed by the CITY OF CHICAGO DEPARTMENT OF
TRANSPORTATION, including but not limited to, those employed at its
office located at 2350 W. Ogden, Chicago, Illinois, at any time from at
least January 1, 2005 and the present (“Class Period”).

36. Plaintiff is a member of the Class. Plaintiff does not know the exact
number of class members because such information is in the exclusive control of
Defendants. The Class also includes, but is not limited to, the following individuals:

a. Gloria McDowell, a Black female, subjected to a hostile,
offensive and intimidating work environment based upon race and
retaliation while working for defendant CDOT’s office located at
the Ogden office.

b. Donald Dorham, a Black male, subjected to a hostile,
offensive and intimidating work environment based upon race and
retaliation while working for defendant CDOT’s office located at
the Ogden office.

c. Lorre Chandler, a Black female, subjected to a hostile,
offensive and intimidating work environment based upon race and
retaliation while working for defendant CDOT’s office located at
the Ogden office.

11
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d. Ronda Mooney, a Black female, subjected to a hostile,
offensive and intimidating work environment based upon race and
retaliation while working for defendant CDOT’s office located at
the Ogden office.

e. Donna Smith, a Black female, subjected to a hostile,
offensive and intimidating work environment based upon race and
retaliation while working for defendant CDOT’s office located at
the Ogden office. A

f. Samuel Alexander, a Black male, subjected to a hostile,
offensive and intimidating work environment based upon race and
retaliation while working for defendant CDOT’s office located at
the Ogden office.

g. Kenneth Trice, a Black male, subjected to a hostile,
offensive and intimidating work environment based upon race and
retaliation while working for defendant CDOT’s office located at
the Ogden office.

h. Dan Gray, a Black male, subjected to a hostile, offensive and
intimidating work environment based upon race and retaliation
while working for defendant CDOT’s office located at the Ogden
office.

i Quintin Wilson, a Black male, subjected to a hostile, offensive
and intimidating work environment based upon race and retaliation
while working for defendant CDOT’s office located at the Ogden
office.

] David Nagelli, an Indian male, subjected to a hostile,
offensive and intimidating work environment based upon race and
retaliation while working for defendant CDOT’s office located at
the Ogden office.

k. Ken Barhoumeh, a Jordanian male, subjected to a

hostile, offensive and intimidating work environment based upon
race and retaliation while working for defendant CDOT’s office
located at the Ogden office.

1. Suhas Parikh, a Indian male, subjected to a hostile,
offensive and intimidating work environment based upon race and
retaliation while working for defendant CDOT’s office located at
the Ogden office.

m. Jay Chi, a Korean male, subjected to a hostile,
offensive and intimidating work environment based upon race and

12
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retaliation while working for defendant CDOT’s office located at
the Ogden office.

n. Miguel Vargas, an Hispanic male, subjected to a hostile,
offensive and intimidating work environment based upon race and
retaliation while working for defendant CDOT’s office located at -
the Ogden office.

0. Pedro Mayoral, an Hispanic male, subjected to a hostile,
offensive and intimidating work environment based upon race and
retaliation while working for defendant CDOT’s office located at
the Ogden office.

37. CDOT has employed more than twenty-four (24) non-whites during the
Class Period. The class is so numerous that joinder of all members is impracticable.

38.  Plaintiff’s claims are typical of the claims of the class members. Plaintiff
is a Black employee of CDOT who, at all relevant times, worked at the Ogden Office and
her interests are consistent with and not antagonistic to those of the other members of the
Class. Plaintiff and the other members of the Class have suffered from the same wrongful
common course of conduct of CDOT and its agents and employees.

39. Plaintiff will fairly and adequately protect the interests of the Class and is
represented by attorneys who are competent and experienced in employment law and the
prosecution of class action litigation.

40.  Plaintiff and the Class members have been damaged by the same common
course of conduct alleged herein, and this common course of conduct has affected the
Class as a whole. This common course of conduct presents questions of law and fact
which are common to the Class and predominate over any questions affecting only

individual members of the Class. These questions include but are not limited to the

following:

13
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a. Whether conduct complained of herein constitutes a violation of Title VII
of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, 42 U.C.S. 2000e, et seq, 42
U.S.C. 1981 and 42 U.S.C. 1983;

b. Whether CDOT has and/or continues to engage in a pattern and practice of
discrimination against non-white employees by allowing and promoting a
hostile, intimidating and offensive work environment directed toward its
non-white employees at its Ogden Office;

c. Whether CDOT has and/or continues to engage in a common course of
conduct that discriminates against plaintiff and other members of the Class
on the basis of race;

d. Whether individual members of CDOT have and/or continue to condone
and participate in the alleged race discrimination and harassment of its
non-white employees;

e. Whether CDOT failed to exercise and/or continues to fail to exercise
reasonable care to prevent and correct promptly any racially
discriminatory and harassing behavior;

f. Whether CDOT had and/or continues to have a systemic custom and
policy of race discrimination and harassment of its non-white employees;

g. Whether CDOT has retaliated and/or continues to retaliate against the
plaintiff and other Class members for complaining about race
discrimination and/or harassment;

h. Whether plaintiff and other members of the Class have and continue to
sustained damages, and if so, the proper measure of damages;

1. Whether plaintiff and the other members of the Class are entitled to,
among other things, injunctive relief, and, if so, the nature and extent of
such injunctive relief; and

j. Whether defendant’s alleged conduct adversely affected, disparately
impacted and/or caused injury to plaintiff and Class members’ work
environment.

41. A class action is superior to other methods for the fast and efficient

adjudication of this controversy. A class action regarding the issues in this case creates

no problems for manageability.

14
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VII. CLAIMS FOR RELIEF
COUNT 1
RACE DISCRIMINATION IN VIOLATION OF TITLE VII
(On Behalf of Plaintiff, individually, and the Class)

1-41. Plaintiff repeats and realleges every allegation above as though fully
rewritten, herein.

42.  Defendant has discriminated against the individual plaintiff and the Class
by subjecting them to a hostile, offensive and intimidating work environment based on
race as described herein.

43.  In addition, defendant has discriminated against the individual plaintiff
and the Class members by adversely affecting the terms and conditions of their
employmént while their white co-workers were not subjected to such adverse terms and
conditions of employment.

44.  Defendant failed to take any‘immediate corrective action, and the above-
mentioned discriminatory and harassing behavior continued. L

45. CDOT by and through its agents, servants and employees ANNUNZIO,
D’Escoto, MORANO, HERAMB, WARE and CARNEY acted with discriminatory intent
with regard to the events described herein.

46.  The effect of the CDOT's actions, policies and practices as described
above has been to create an offehsive, humiliating and racially hostile work environment
for plaintiff and Class members.

47. The aforementioned incidents constituted an unlawful employmenf
practice in violation of Sec. 703(a) of Title VII, 42 U.S.C. Sec. 2000e-2.

48. As a further result of the CDOT's above stated actions, plaintiff and Class

members were forced to endure a racially hostile work environment during their

15
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employment at the Ogden Office and have been deprived of income in the form of wages
and other benefits due each of them, solely because of their race, in an amount to be
proved at trial, and has suffered, and continues to suffer severe emotional distress,

humiliation, embarrassment, and mental anguish.

WHEREFORE, plaintiff, individually and on behalf of the Class members
respectfully requests that this Court grant the following relief:

a. Certify this case as a class action pursuant to Fed. R. Civ. P. 23 (a), (b)(2)
and (b)(3), the named plaintiff herein as an adequate Class representative,
and plaintiff’s counsel as counsel for the Class;

b. Declaring that the conduct of CITY OF CHICAGO DEPARTMENT OF
TRANSPORTATION described herein is in violation of Title VII of the
Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, 42 U.S.C. Sec. 2000e, ef seq.;

c. Awarding plaintiff and Class members the salary, with interest, and
benefits each has lost as a result of CITY OF CHICAGO DEPARTMENT

OF TRANSPORTATION’s conduct;

d. Awarding plaintiff and Class members compensatory damages, including
for emotional distress, humiliation, embarrassment mental anguish;

e. Awarding plaintiff and Class members reasonable attorneys' fees and
costs, including under 42 U.S.C. Sec. 2000(e)-5(k) and 42 U.S.C. §1988;

f. Permanently enjoining and restraining Defendants from, in any
manner:

i allowing and promoting a hostile, intimidating and offensive work
environment directed toward its non-white employees at its Ogden
Office, or othewise;

il. segregating plaintiff and other Class members on the basis of race
by ward assignments, office work hours, and office desk
assignments; and

iii. retaliating against plaintiff and other Class members for
complaining about discrimination, harassment and/or retaliation.

and

16
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g. Awarding plaintiff and Class members such other and further relief as this
Court deems proper and just.

COUNT 11
42 U.S.C. §1981, §1983 - CITY OF CHICAGO DEPARTMENT OF
TRANSPORTATION
(On Behalf of Plaintiff, individually, and the Class)

1-41  Plaintiff repeats and realleges the allegations contained in paragraphs one
(1) through forty-one (41) of Count I, as though fully rewritten, herein.

42. At all relevant times, CDOT empowered ANNUNZIO, HERAMB,
WARE MORANO, CARNEY, and POWERS to establish a hostile work environment of
race discrimination and harassment by placing them in a position to establish a pattern
and practice of race discrimination against CDOT's non-white employees, including the
individual plaintiff and Class members, and by failing to monitor their activities in a
manner that would eliminate or prevent race discrimination against its non-white
employees, including plaintiff and Class members.

43. At all relevant times:, CDOT further empowered ANNUNZIO, HERAMB,
WARE MORANO, CARNEY, and POWERS to establish a hostile work environment of
retaliation by placing them in a position to establish a pattern and practice of retaliation
against CDOT's employees, including the individual plaintiff and Class members, who
complain about discrimination and retaliatory conduct, and by failing to monitor their
activities in a manner that would eliminate or prevent retaliatién against its employees
who complain about pérceived discrimination and harassment, and retaﬁatory practices,
including the individual ﬁlaintiff and Class members.

44,  CDOT, ANNUNZIO, HERAMB, WARE MORANO, CARNEY, and

POWERS each acted with discriminatory and retaliatory intent when it/they subjected

17
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non-white employees, including the individual plaintiff and Class members, to a pattern
and practice of race discrimination and harassment.

45. At all relevant times herein, the defendants knew that the conduct as
described herein was a violation of 42 U.S.C. §1981, 42 U.S.C. §1983, 42 U.S.C. 2000e,
and the First and Fourteenth Amendments.

46.  All of the actions taken against the individual plaintiff and Class members
by the defendants or those agents, servants and/or employees acting on behalf of the
CDOT and referred to herein, including the race discrimination and harassment,
retaliatory adverse employment actions, and the approving and condoning of these
actions by the office of the Commissioner of the Department of Transportation, was done
by the defendant while acting under color of state law and in their official capacities, and
had the effect of depriving the individual plaintiff and Class members of rights secured
by the Constitution and laws of the United States, specifically 42 U.S.C. §1981, 42
U.S.C. 2000e and the First and Fourteenth Amendments, in violation of 42 U.S.C. §1983.

47.  All of the actions taken against the individual plaintiff and Class members
by the defendants or those agents, servants and/or employees acting on behalf of CDOT
and referred to herein, including the race discrimination and harassment, retaliatory
adverse employment actions and the approving and condoning of these actions by the
office of the Commissioner of the Department of Transportation, was in retaliation for the
exercise and/or the attempted exercise of plaintiff’s and Class members’ right to speech,
press and association, in violation of the First Amendment, and/or because of the
individual plaintif©s and Class members’ race in violation of due process and equal

protection, in violation of the Fourteenth Amendment.

18
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48.  Additionally, CDOT failed to implement any policy that it may purport to
have to prevent and/or eliminate race discrimination and harassment, and impermissible
retaliation for employees who complain about illegal discriminatory and/or retaliatory
conduct at the Department of Transportation.

49  The actions of the defendants or those agents, servants and/or employees
acting on behalf of CDOT, in failing to take any immediate corrective action to prevent
and/or prohibit instances of race discrimination and harassment, and in retaliating against
the individual plaintiff and Class members for speaking out about race discrimination,
harassment, and retaliatory adverse employment actions, were carried out by sufficiently
high ranking officials of CDOT who either possessed or had been delegated final
policymaking authority by CDOT with regard to personnel issues within the Department
of Transportation including, but not limited to ANNUNZIO, HERAMB, WARE
MORANO, CARNEY, and POWERS as to cause these actions to constitute policy,
custom or practice of CDOT.

50. The actions of the defendants or those agents, servants and/or employees
acting on behalf of CDOT, in failing to take any immediate corrective action to prevent
and/or prohibit instances of race discrimination and harassment, condoning such conduct,
and in retaliating and allowing retaliation against the individual plaintiff and Class
members for speaking out about race discrimination and harassment, and retaliatory
adverse employment actions were part of CDOT's policy, official or unofficial, and not a
departure from any policy of CDOT.

51. As a direct and proximate cause of CDOT’s systemic policy and/or
custom of race discrimination and harassment, and retaliation, the individual plaintiff and

Class members have been, and continues to be, deprived of their rights, privileges and/or
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immunities secured by the Constitution and laws, including but not limited to 42 U.S.C.
§1981, 42 U.S.C. 2000e and the First and Fourteenth Amendments, in violation of 42
U.S.C. §1983.

52. The aforementioned incidents created an intimidating, retaliating, and
hostile and offensive work environment for the individual plaintiff and Class members,
by the defendant, and therefore violated plaintiff’s and Class members rights under 42
U.S.C. §1981, 42 U.S.C. 2000e, and the First and Fourteenth Amendments, in violation
of 42 U.S.C. §1983.

53.  As a result of the illegal racial discrimination and harassment, retaliation
and other unlawful employment practices complained of herein, plaintiff and Class
members experienced, and continue to experience, loss of wages and benefits, and
suffered and continue to suffer from emotional distress and mental anguish.

WHEREFORE, plaintiff, individually and on behalf of the Class respectfully
request that this Court grant the following relief:

a. Certify this case as a class action pursuant to Fed. R. Civ. P. 23 (a), (b)(2)
and (b)(3), the named plaintiff herein as an adequate Class representative,
and plaintiff’s counsel as counsel for the Class;

b. Declaring that the coﬂduct of defendant, CITY OF CHICAGO
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION, described herein is in
violation of 42 U.S.C. § 1981 et seq. and 42 U.S.C. §1983, et seq.;

C. Awarding plaintiff and Class Members the salary, with interest, and
benefits each has lost as a result of the conduct of defendant, CITY OF

CHICAGO DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

d. Awarding plaintiff and Class Members compensatory damages, including
for emotional distress, humiliation, embarrassment mental anguish;

e. Awarding plaintiff and Class Members reasonable attorneys' fees and
costs under 42 U.S.C. §1988;
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f. Permanently enjoining and restraining Defendants from, in any
manner:

1. allowing and promoting a hostile, intimidating and offensive work
environment directed toward its non-white employees at its Ogden
Office;

ii. segregating plaintiff and other class members on the basis of race
by ward assignments, office work hours, and office desk

assignments; and

1ii. retaliating against plaintiff and other Class members for
complaining about discrimination, harassment and/or retaliation.

and

g. Awarding plaintiff, plaintiff and Class Members such other and further
relief as this Court deems proper and just.

COUNT I1X
42 U.S.C. §1981, §1983-INDIVIDUAL LIABILITY
(On Behalf of Plaintiff, individually, and the Class)

1-41. Plaintiff repeats and realleges the allegations contained in paragraphs one
(1) through forty-one (41) of Count I, as though fully rewritten, herein.

42.  The aforementioned racial harassment and discrimination of the individual
plaintiff and Class members and corresponding constitutional deprivation beginning on or
around January of 2005 and continuing to the present, was directly caused and intended
by ANNUNZIO, HERAMB, WARE MORANO, CARNEY, and POWERS.

43. The aforementioned racial harassment and discrimination and retaliatory
misconduct was intentional and performed at the direction of and/or with the complete
knowledge and acquiescence of ANNUNZIO, HERAMB, WARE MORANO, CARNEY,
and POWERS, and ANNUNZIO, HERAMB, WARE MORANO, CARNEY, and
POWERS approved, condoned anci/or turned a blind eye to the retaliatbry actions taken.

WHEREFORE, plaintiff, individually and on behalf of the Class respectfully

request that this Court grant the following relief:
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a. Certify this case as a class action pursuant to Fed. R. Civ. P. 23 (a), (b)(2) and
(b)(3), the named plaintiff herein as adequate Class representative, and
plaintiff’s counsel as counsel for the Class;

b. Declaring that the conduct of defendants, JOSEPH ANNUNZIO, CHERILN
HERAMB, VICTOR MORANO, THOMAS CARNEY, and TOM POWERS
described herein is in violation of 42 U.S.C. §1981, et seq. and 42 U.S.C.
§1983, ef seq.;

c. Awarding plaintiff and Class members the salary, with interest, and benefits
each has lost as a result of the conduct of defendants JOSEPH ANNUNZIO,
CHERILN HERAMB, VICTOR MORANO, THOMAS CARNEY, and TOM
POWERS, and each of them; . .

d. Awarding plaintiff and Class members damages for emotional distress,
humiliation, embarrassment and mental anguish against JOSEPH
ANNUNZIO, CHERILN HERAMB, VICTOR MORANO, THOMAS
CARNEY, and TOM POWERS, and each of them;

e. Awarding plaintiff and Class members reasonable attorneys' fees and costs
under 42 U.S.C. §1988 against JOSEPH ANNUNZIO, CHERILN HERAMB,
VICTOR MORANO, THOMAS CARNEY, and TOM POWERS, and each of

them;
f. Permanently enjoining and restraining Defendants from, in any

manner:

1. allowing and promoting a hostile, intimidating and offensive work
environment directed toward its non-white employees at its Ogden
Office;

1. segregating plaintiff and other class members on the basis of race
by ward assignments, office work hours, and office desk
assignments; and

11i. retaliating against plaintiff and other Class members for
complaining about discrimination, harassment and/or retaliation.

and

g. Awarding plaintiff and Class members such other and further relief as this
Court deems proper and just.

COUNT IV
RACE DISCRIMINATION IN VIOLATION OF TITLE VII
(On Behalf of Plaintiff YOUNG)

1-19. Plaintiff repeats and realleges Paragraphs 1-19 of Count I as paragraphs 1-
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19 of this Count IV, as though fully rewritten, herein.

20.  Plaintiff Patty Young is Black and was hired by CDOT on or around April
18, 1989, as a Field Service Specialist II. Plaintiff’s current position with CDOT is Field
Service Specialist III and plaintiff has worked at the Ogden office since on or before
January of 2005.

21. Specifically, beginning in or around January of 2005 and continuing until
in or around early November of 2006, ANNUNZIO continually and on a daily basis,
commonly in the presence of multiple CDOT employees, engaged in racial

discriminatory and harassing behavior in the workplace that included but is not limited

to:

a. ‘referring to and addressing YOUNG and/or other black co-workers and
employees as “Nigger” and “Mambo Gorilla”;

b. referring to and addressing YOUNG and/or other black female co-workers
and employees as “Black Bitch”;

c.  referring to and addressing Asian, Indian and Hispanic co-workers and
employees as “fucking foreigners”;

d. mimicking the accents and/or appearances of Black, Hispanic, Asian, and
Indian co-workers and employees;

e. draping a cloth over his head and warning YOUNG and/or other black co-
workers and employees that he was the Grand Wizard of the Ku Klux
Klan (KXXK);

f. singing, in the presence of YOUNG and/or other black co-workers the
theme song from the cartoon, “Magilla Gorilla” while imitating a gorilla in
the presence of Black and other non-white employees;

g. making pretend gang member gestures in the presence of YOUNG and/or
other Black and non-white employees; and '

h. other racist, derogatory and/or disparaging remarks about YOUNG and/or
co-workers and employees.
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22. Each of these comments, remarks or gestures were not isolated incidents
but are examples of the types of discriminatory and racially charged comments and
conduct by ANNUNZIO that were an everyday occurrence at CDOT.

23.  Beginning in or around January of 2005 and continuing to the present,
Black and other-non white employees, including plaintiff, have been and still are
assigned to work only in the South side wards of the City of Chicago, and are not
assigned to work in wards on the North side of the City of Chicago.

24, CDOT’s above-mentioned segregated ward assignments adversely affect
the Black and other non-white employees’ terms and conditions of employment,
including plaintiff’s, in that Black employees, including plaintiff, who work in the South
side wards are denied opportunities for promotion that are available to similarly situated
non-Black employees who are assigned to work in the North side wards. Additionally,
and based upon the segregated ward assignments, Black and other non-white employees,
including plaintiff, are forced to work in high crime, gang-infested neighborhoods in the
South side, whereas similarly situated non-Black employees are assigned to work in
safer, more financially affluent neighborhoods on the North side.

25. Beginning in or around January of 2005 and continuing to the present,
Black CDOT employees at the Ogden Office, including plaintiff, have been and are
segregated from white employees in the workplace in that they are assigned to work at
desks that are separate and isolated from non-Black employees.

26. In or around June of 2006, CDOT by and through its agent, servant and
employee ANNUNZIO, instituted new office hours at the Ogden Office, requiring the
Black employees to work in the office on Monday from 1:00 p.m. to 4:00 p.m. and

Wednesday from 7:30 a.m. to 10:30 am. Asa result of CDOT’s implemented office
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hours, Black employees were and continue to be segregated from the non-Black
employees during the workweek.

27.  Plaintiff repeatedly complained on numerous occasions about, but not
limited to, ANNUNZIO’s above-mentioned discriminatory and harassing behavior,
including but not limited to:

a. on January 26, 2005, to CDOT Commissioner Miguel D’Escoto
(“D’Escoto”), VICTOR MORANO and TOM CARNEY;

b. on June 6, 2006, to Commissioner CHERILYN HERAMB, MORANO,
ROBERT WARE, Ron Hubberman, to the Office of Chicago Mayor
Richard M. Daley and the Inspector General;

C. on October 21, 2006, to all of the City Alderman;

d. on or around November 3, 2006 to HERAMB, WARE, Local Union
1001, and to the Office of Chicago Mayor Richard M. Daley; and

e. on January 16, 2007 to the Office of Chicago Mayor Richard M. Daley.

78,  Defendant failed to take any immediate corrective action, and the above-
mentioned discriminatory and harassing behavior continued.

29.  CDOT by and through its agents, servants and employees ANNUNZIO,
D’Escoto, MORANO, HERAMB, WARE and CARNEY acted with discriminatory intent
with regard to the events described herein.

30. At all relevant times, plaintiff performed her job in a satisfactory manner.

31. Similarly situated white employees were not subjected to racially
discriminatory and harassing behavior.

30, The effect of the CDOT's actions, policies and practices as described
above has been to create an offensive, humiliating and racially hostile work environment

throughout plaintiff’s tenure at the Ogden Office.
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33. The aforementioned incidents constituted an unlawful employment

practice in violation of Sec. 703(a) of Title VII, 42 U.S.C. Sec. 2000e-2.
34.  As a further result of the CDOT's above stated actions, plaintiff was forced
to endure a racially hostile work environment during her employment at the Ogden
Office and has been deprived of income in the form of wages and other benefits due her,
solely because of her race, in an amount to be proved at trial, and has suffered, and
continues to suffer severe emotional distress, humiliation, embarrassment, and mental
anguish.
WHEREFORE, plaintiff PATTY YOUNG respectfully prays that this Court enter
judgment in favor of plaintiff and against CITY OF CHICAGO DEPARTMENT OF
TRANSPORTATION:
(@) Declaring that the conduct of CITY OF CHICAGO DEPARTMENT OF
TRANSPORTATION described herein is in violation of Title VII of the
Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, 42 U.S.C. Sec. 2000e, et seq.;

(b) Awarding plaintiff PATTY YOUNG the salary, with interest, she has lost
as a result of CITY OF CHICAGO DEPARTMENT OF
TRANSPORTATION’s conduct;

© Awarding plaintiff PATTY YOUNG compensatory damages, including
for emotional distress, humiliation, embarrassment mental anguish;

(d)  Awarding plaintiff PATTY YOUNG reasonable attorneys' fees and
costs under 42 U.S.C. Sec. 2000(e)-5(k) and 42 U.S.C. §1988; and

(e) Awarding plaintiff PATTY YOUNG such other and further relief as
this Court deems proper and just.

COUNT V
GENDER DISCRIMINATION UNDER TITLE VII
(On Behalf of Plaintiff YOUNG)
1-19. Plaintiff repeats and realleges Paragraphs 1-19 of Count I, above, as

paragraphs 1-19 of this Count V, as though fully rewritten, herein.
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20.  Plaintiff Patty YOUNG is female and was hired by CDOT on or around
April 18, 1989, as a Field Service Specialist II. Plaintiff’s current position with CDOT is
Field Service Specialist III and plaintiff has worked at the Ogden office since on or
before January of 2005.

21.  Beginning in or around January of 2005 and continuing until in or around
early November of 2006, ANNUNZIO continually and on a daily basis referred to and/or
addressed black female employees, co-workers and other female employees, including
plaintiff, as “Black Bitch” or “Bitches”.

22.  Plaintiff has repeatedly complained several times and on numerous
occasions, about ANNUNZIO’s above-mentioned discriminatory and harassing behavior,
including, but not limited to:

a. on January 26, 2005, to CDOT Commissioner Miguel D’Escoto
(“D’Escoto”), VICTOR MORANO and TOM CARNEY;

b. on June 6, 2006, to Commissioner CHERILYN HERAMB, MORANO,
ROBERT WARE, Ron Hubberman, to the Office of Chicago Mayor
Richard M. Daley and the Inspector General;

C. on October 21, 2006, to all of the City Alderman;

d. on or around November 3, 2006 to HERAMB, WARE, Local Union
- 1001, and to the Office of Chicago Mayor Richard M. Daley; and

23. Defendant failed to take any immediate corrective action and the above-
mentioned discriminatory and harassing behavior continued.

24.  On or around Janua}y 4, 2007, CDOT by and through its agents, servants
and employees HERAMB, POWERS, WARE and MORANO required plaintiff to
reimburse CDOT for equipment that. was stoien from plaintiff’s vehicle on October 31,

2006.
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25.  Beginning in or around January 7, 2007, plaintiff complained on several
occasions to HERAMB, WARE, MORANO and CARNEY that defendant’s decision to
require plaintiff to reimburse CDOT for the stolen equipment constituted gender
discrimination and retaliation for her early complaints of race and gender discrimination
and harassment. Despite her complaints, defendant failed to take any immediate

corrective action.

26. On or around January 16, 2007, plaintiff complained to the Office of
Chicago Mayor Richard M. Daley about the above-mentioned gender discrimination and
retaliation.

27. On or after January 16, 2007, the Office of Chicago Mayor Richard M.
Daley forward plaintiff’s January 16, 2007 written complaint to the Inspector General’s
Office for investigation of plaintiff’s claims of race and gender discrimination and
retaliation.

28.  From approximately March of 2007 until November 21, 2008, the
Inspector General’s Office conducted an investigation.

29. On or around January 28, 2009, CDOT terminated plaintiff.

30.  CDOT terminated plaintiff because of her gender, female.

31. Similarly situated male employees were not required by CDOT to
reimburse CDOT for stolen or damaged equipment or terminated for having CDOT

equipment stolen, lost or damaged.

32. During the entire course of her employment at CDOT, plaintiff performed

all of her duties and responsibilities in a satisfactory manner.
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33.  The effect of the CDOT's actions, policies and practices as described
above has been to create a hostile work environment based upon gender, female,
throughout plaintiff’s tenure of employment at the Ogden Office.

34.  The aforementioned incidents constituted an unlawful employment
practice in violation of Sec. 703(a) of Title VII, 42 U.S.C. Sec. 2000e-2.

35. As a further result of the CDOT's above stated actions, plaintiff was
discriminated against because of her gender, female, and has been deprived of income in
the form of wages and other benefits due her, solely because of her gender, in an amount
to be proved at trial, and has suffered, and continues to suffer sever emotional distress,
humiliation, embarrassment, and mental anguish.

WHEREFORE, plaintiff PATTY YOUNG respectfully prays that this Court enter
judgment in favor of plaintiff and against CITY OF CHICAGO DEPARTMENT OF

TRANSPORTATION:

(a) Declaring that the conduct of CITY OF CHICAGO DEPARTMENT OF
TRANSPORTATION described herein is in violation of Title VII of the
Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, 42 U.S.C. Sec. 2000e, ef seq.;

(b) Awarding plaintiff PATTY YOUNG the salary, with interest, she has lost
as a result of CITY OF CHICAGO DEPARTMENT OF

TRANSPORTATION’s conduct;

() Awarding plaintiff PATTY YOUNG compensatory damages, including
for emotional distress, humiliation, embarrassment mental anguish;

(@ Awarding plaintiff PATTY YOUNG reasonable attorneys' fees and
costs under 42 U.S.C. Sec. 2000(e)-5(k) and 42 U.S.C. §1988; and

(e) Awarding plaintiff PATTY YOUNG such other and further relief as
this Court deems proper and just. A
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COUNT V1
IMPERMISSIBLE RETALIATION UNDER TITLE VII
(On Behalf of Plaintiff YOUNG)

1-70. Plaintiff repeats and realleges Paragraphs 1-34 of Count IV and
paragraphs 1-35 of Count V as Paragraphs 1-70 of Count VI as though fully rewritten,
herein.

71. On or about August 24, 2006, in retaliation for plaintiff complaining to
CDOT, defendant, by and through its agents, servants and employees MORANO,
CARNEY and POWERS, adversely affected the terms and conditions of plaintiff’s status
as a Union Steward.

72.  Beginning on or after January of 2007, CDOT began a course of
retaliation against plaintiff for her complaints of discrimination, that included but is not
limited ANNUNZIO telling plaintiff that he had plaintiff’s personal information,
including her home address, telephone number and social security number, threatening
plaintiff to be careful, and having plaihtiff followed in the field as she performed her
duties and responsibilities.

73. On or around January 4, 2007, CDOT by and through its agents, servants
and employees HERAMB, POWERS, WARE and MORANO required plaintiff to
reimburse CDOT for equipment that was stolen from plaintiff’s vehicle on October 31,
2006.

74,  Beginning in or around January 7, 2007, plaintiff complained on several
occasions to HERAMB, WARE, MORANO and CARNEY that defendant’s decision to
require plaintiff to reimburse CDOT for the stolen equipment was gender discrimination

and in retaliation for her early complaints of race and gender discrimination and

harassment.
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75.  On or around January 16, 2007, plaintiff complained to the Office of
Chicago Mayor Richard M. Daley about the above-mentioned gender discrimination and
retaliation.

76. On or after January 16, 2007, the Office of Chicago Mayor Richard M.
Daley forward plaintiff’s January 16, 2007 written complaint to the Inspector General’s
Office for investigation of plaintiff’s claims of race and gender discrimination and
retaliation.

77.  From approximately March of 2007 until November 21, 2008, the
Inspector General’s Office conducted an investigation.

78.  On or about November 28, 2007, in retaliation for plaintiff complaining to
CDOT, the union, with the full knowledge of ANNUNZIO, MORANO, CARNEY,
POWERS, terminated plaintiff’s status as a Union Steward.

79. On or around January 28, 2009, CDOT terminated plaintiff.

80.  CDOT terminated plaintiff in retaliation for her complaints of race and
gender discrimination and retaliation.

81. Plaintiff was reinstated on or around August 4, 2009. Since her
reinstatement, defendant has continued to engage in retaliatory conduct against plaintiff
including but not limited to performing audits of her work and attempts to unjustifiably
discipline plaintiff.

82. CDOT's course of conduct toward plaintiff showed a willful and/or
reckless disregard of Plaintiffs rights to employment free from impermissible

discriminatory and retaliatory conduct.

83. As a further result of the CDOT's above stated actions, Plaintiff was

forced to endure a retaliatory hostile work environment during her employment with the
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CDOT and has been deprived of income in the form of wages and benefits, solely
because of impermissible retaliation, in an amount to be proved at trial, and has suffered,
and continues to suffer emotional distress, humiliation, embarrassment, and mental
anguish.
WHEREFORE, plaintiff PATTY YOUNG respectfully prays that this Court enter
judgment in favor of plaintiff and against CDOT OF CHICAGO:
(a) Declaring that the conduct of CDOT OF CHICAGO described herein is in
violation of Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, 42
U.S.C. Sec. 2000¢, ef seq.;

(b) Awarding plaintiff PATTY YOUNG the salary, with interest, she has
lost as a result of CDOT OF CHICAGO’s conduct;

(c) Awarding plaintiff PATTY YOUNG compensatory damages, including
for emotional distress, humiliation, embarrassment mental anguish;

(d) Awarding plaintiff PATTY YOUNG reasonable attorneys' fees and
costs under 42 U.S.C. Sec. 2000(e)-5(k) and 42 U.S.C. §1988; and

(e) Awarding plaintiff PATTY YOUNG such other and further relief as
this Court deems proper and just.

COUNT VII
42 U.S.C. §1981, §1983-CDOT
(On Behalf of Plaintiff YOUNG)

1-90. Plaintiff repeats and realleges Paragraphs 1-34 of Count IV, and
paragraphs 1-35 of Count V, Paragraphs 71-83 of Count VI as though fully rewritten,
herein.

91. At all relevant times, CDOT empowered ANNUNZIO, HERAMB,
WARE, MORANO, CARNEY, and POWERS to establish a hostile work environment of
race and gender discrimination and harassment by placing each of them in a position to

establish a pattern and practice of race and gender discrimination against CDOT's Black

and female employees, including plaintiff, and by failing to monitor their activities in a
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manner that would eliminate or prevent race and gender discrimination against its Black
and female employees, including plaintiff.

92. At all relevant times, CDOT further empowered ANNUNZIO, HERAMB,
WARE, MORANO, CARNEY, and POWERS to establish a hostile work environment of
retaliation by placing them in a position to establish a pattern and practice of retaliation
against CDOT's employees, including plaintiff, who complain about race and gender
discrimination and retaliatory conduct, and by failing to monitor their activities in a
manner that would eliminate or prevent retaliation against its employees who complain
about perceived race and gender discrimination and harassment, and retaliatory practices,
including plaintiff.

93.  CDOT, ANNUNZIO, HERAMB, WARE, MORANO, CARNEY, and
POWERS each acted with discriminatory and retaliatory intent when it/they subjected
Black employees, including plaintiff, to a pattern and practice of race and gender
discrimination, and retaliation.

94. At all relevant times herein, the defendants knew that the conduct as
described herein was a violation of 42 U.S.C. §1981, 42 U.S.C. §1983, 42 U.S..C. 2000e,
and the First and Fourteenth Amendments.

95. All of the actions taken against plaintiff by the Defendants or those agents,
servants and/or employees acting on behalf of the CDOT and referred to herein, including
the race and gender discrimination and harassment, retaliatory adverse employment
actions, and the approving and condbrﬁng of these actiohs by the office of the
Commissioner of the Department of Transportation, was done by the defendants while
acting under color of state law and in their official capacities, and had the effect of

depriving plaintiff of rights secured by the Constitution and laws of the United States,

(V8]
(O3]
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specifically 42 U.S.C. §1981, 42 U.S.C. 2000e> and the First and Fourteenth
Amendments, in violation of 42 U.S.C. §1983.

96.  All of the actions taken against plaintiff by the defendants or those agents,
servants and/or employees acting on behalf of CDOT and referred to herein, including the
race and gender discrimination and harassment, retaliatory adverse employment actions
and the approving and condom'ﬁg of these actions by the office of the Commissioner of
thé Department of Transportatioﬁ, was in retaliation for the exercise and/or the attempted
exercise of plaiﬁtiffs right to speech, press and association, in violation of the First
Amendment, and/or because of plaintiff's race in violation of due process and equal
protection, in violation of the Fourteenth Amendment.

97.  Additionally, CDOT failed to implement any policy that it may purport to
have to prevent and/or eliminate race and gender discrimination and harassment, and
impermissible retaliation for employees who complain about illegal discriminatory and/or
retaliatory conduct at the Department of Transportation.

98.  The actions of the defendants or those agents, servants and/or employees
acting on behalf of CDOT, in failing to take any immediate corrective action to prevent
and/or prohibit instances of race and gender discrimination and harassment, and in
retaliating against plaintiff for speaking out about race discrimination, harassment, and
retaliation, were carried out by sufficiently high ranking officials of CDOT who either
possessed or had been delegated final policymaking authority by CDOT with regard to
personnel issues within the Department of Transportation including, but not limited to
ANNUNZIO, HERAMB, WARE, MORANO, CARNEY, and POWERS, as to cause

these actions to constitute policy, custom or practice of CDOT.



Case 1:10-cv-00989 Document1 Filed 02/12/10 Page 35 of 49

99.  The actions of the defeﬁdants or those agents, servants and/or employees
acting on behalf of CDOT, in failing to take any immediate corrective action to prevent
and/or prohibit instances of race and gender discrimination and harassment, condoning
such conduct, and in retaliating and allowing retaliation against plaintiff for speaking out
about race and gender discrimination and harassment, and retaliation were part of
CDOT's policy, official or unofficial, and not a departure from any policy of CDOT.

100. As a direct and proximate cause of CDOT’s systemic policy and/or
custom of race and gender discrimination and harassment, and retaliation, plaintiff has
been, and continues to be, deprived of her rights, privileges and/or immunities secured by
the Constitution and laws, including but not limited to 42 U.S.C. §1981, 42 U.S.C. 2000e
and the First and Fourteenth Amendments, in violation of 42 U.S.C. §1983.

101. The aforementioned incidents created an intimidating, retaliating, and
hostile and offensive work environment for plaintiff, by the defendants, and therefore
violated plaintiff's rights under 42 U.S.C. §1981, 42 U.S.C. 2000e, and the First and
Fourteenth Amendmenfs, in violation of 42 U.S.C. §1983.

102.  As a result of the illegal racial and gender discrimination and harassment,
retaliation and other unlawful employment practices complained of herein, plaintiff
exp‘erien-ced, and continues to experience, loss of wages and benefits, and suffered and
continues to suffer from emotional distress and mental anguish.

WHEREFORE, plaintiff, PATTY YOUNG, respectfully prays that this Court
enter judgment in favor of plaintiff and against CDOT OF CHICAGO:

(a)  Declaring that the conduct of defendant, CDOT OF CHICAGO

described herein is in violation of 42 U.S.C. § 1981 et seq. and 42 U.S.C.
§1983, ef seq.;

(b) Awarding plaintiff, PATTY YOUNG, the salary, with interest, she
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has lost as a result of the conduct of defendant, CDOT OF CHICAGO

(c) Awarding plaintiff PATTY YOUNG compensatory damages, including
for emotional distress, humiliation, embarrassment mental anguish;

(d) Awarding plaintiff, PATTY YOUNG, reasonable attorneys' fees and
costs under 42 U.S.C. §1988; and

(e) Awarding plaintiff, PATTY YOUNG, such other and further relief
as this Court deems proper and just.

_ COUNT VIII
42 U.S.C. §1981, §1983-INDIVIDUAL LIABILITY
(On Behalf of Plaintiff YOUNG)

1-90. Plaintiff repeats and realleges Paragraphs 1-34 of Count IV, and
paragraphs 1-35 of Count V, Paragraphs 71-83 of Count VI as though fully rewritten,
herein.

78.  The aforementioned race and gender harassment and discrimination and
retaliation and corresponding constitutional deprivation beginning on or around January
of 2005 and continuing to the present, was directly caused and intended by ANNUNZIO,
HERAMB, WARE, MORANO, CARNEY, and POWERS.

79. The aforementioned racial harassment and discrimination and retaliatory
misconduct was intentional and performed at the direction of and/or with the complete
knowledge and acquiescence of ANNUNZIO, HERAMB, WARE, MORANO,
CARNEY, and POWERS, and ANNUNZIO, HERAMB, WARE, MORANO, CARNEY,
and POWERS approved, condoned and/or turned a blind eye to the retaliatory actions
taken.

WHEREFORE, plaintiff, PATTY YOUNG, respectfully prays that this Court

enter judgment in favor or plaintiff and against JOSEPH ANNUNZIO, CHERILYN

HERAMB, ROBERT WARE, VICTOR MORANO, THOMAS CARNEY, TOM



Case 1:10-cv-00989 Document1 Filed 02/12/10 Page 37 of 49

BYRNE, and TOM POWERS, individually, and each of them:

(2) Declaring that the conduct of defendants, JOSEPH ANNUNZIO,
CHERILYN HERAMB, ROBERT WARE, VICTOR MORANO, THOMAS
CARNEY, TOM BYRNE, and TOM POWERS described herein is in violation of
42 U.S.C. §1981, et seq. and 42 U.S.C. §1983, et seq.;

(b) Awarding plaintiff, PATTY YOUNG, the salary, with interest, she has
lost as a result of the conduct of defendants JOSEPH ANNUNZIO, CHERILYN
HERAMB, ROBERT WARE, VICTOR MORANO, THOMAS CARNEY, TOM
BYRNE, and TOM POWERS and each of them;

(c) Awarding plaintiff, PATTY YOUNG, punitive damages against JOSEPH
ANNUNZIO, CHERILYN HERAMB, ROBERT WARE, VICTOR MORANO,
THOMAS CARNEY, TOM BYRNE, and TOM POWERS, and each of them;

(d) Awarding plaintiff PATTY YOUNG compensatory damages, including
for emotional distress, humiliation, embarrassment mental anguish, against
JOSEPH ANNUNZIO, CHERILYN HERAMB, ROBERT WARE, VICTOR
MORANO, THOMAS CARNEY, TOM BYRNE, and TOM POWERS, and each
of them;

(e) Awarding plaintiff, PATTY YOUNG, reasonable attorneys' fees and costs
under 42 U.S.C. §1988 against JOSEPH ANNUNZIO, CHERILYN HERAMB,

ROBERT WARE, VICTOR MORANO, THOMAS CARNEY, TOM BYRNE,
and TOM POWERS, and each of them ; and

® Awarding plaintiff, PATTY YOUNG, such other and further relief
as this Court deems proper and just.

PLAINTIFF DEMANDS TRIAL BY JURY OF ALL ISSUES HEREIN.

Respectfully submitted,

By: /s/ Allison L. Chaplick

Counsel for Plaintiff

Seth R. Halpern

John R. Malkinson

Allison L. Chaplick
MALKINSON & HALPERN, P.C.
208 S. LaSalle Street, Suite 1750
Chicago, IL 60604

(312) 427-9600
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Form 5 (5/01) ; \ ¢

3

CHARGE OF DISCR“” IINATION Cﬁarge Presé‘ﬁréé To: Agency(ies) Charge No(s):

This form is affected by the Privacy Act of 1974. See enclosed Privacy Act D FEPA
Statement and other information before completing this form.
EEOC 440-2007-02436

lllinois Department Of Human Rights and EEOC |
State or local Agency, if any

Name (indicate Mr., Ms., Mrs.) Home Phone (Incl. Area Code) Date of Birth

Ms. Patty Young _ (773) 8211787 08-08-1956

Street Address City, State and ZIP Code
5 East Brayton, Chicago, IL. 60628

| Named is the Employer, Labor Organization, Employment Agency, Apprenticeship Committee, or State or Local Government Agency That | Believe
Discriminated Against Me or Others. ({f more than fwo, list under PARTICULARS below.)

Name No. Employees, Members Phone No. (Include Area Code)
CITY OF CHICAGO DEPT OF TRANSPORATION Unknown (312) 746-6371
Street Address City, State and ZIP Code ’

30 N. Lasalle Street, 2nd Floor, Chicago, IL 60602

Name No. Employees, Members Phone No. {inciude Area Code)
Street Address City, State and ZIP Code

DATE(S) DISCRIMINATION TOOK PLACE
Earfiest Latest

D.RACE I:, COLOR SEX D RELIGION D NATIONAL ORIGIN 01-04-2007 01-04-2007
, RETALIATION D AGE D DISABILITY D OTHER (Specify below.)

DISCRIMINATION BASED ON (Check appropriate box{es).)

CONTINUING ACTION

THE PARTICULARS ARE (If additional paper is needed, attach exira sheet(s)):
| was hired by the Respondent on March 18, 1989. My current position is Field Service Specialist 111. In July
2006, 1 filed a complaint against a manager who referred fo employees in a racially derogatory manner and
exhibited racist behavior. No action was taken o address my complaints and this manager was ultimately
promoted. On October 31, 2006, my automobile was broken into and along with personal items | possessed,
some of the Respondent’s equipment was also stolen. Although I followed Respondent’s practice in regards fo
handling this kind of incident, on January 4, 2007, | was notified that | kave to pay for the equipment. Male
employees who have had similar incidents, have not been required to pay for the stolen equipment and have
not been required to provide a hard copy of the police report regarding the theit. :

| believe | have been discriminated against because of my sex, female and retaliated against because of my
internal complaint of harassment, in violation of Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended.

XN NEL

NOTARY - When necessary for State and l;sealAg_en\ y*Reqmrements .

| want this charge filed with both the EEOC and the State or local Agency, if any. |
will advise the agencies if | change my address or phone number and | will cooperate
fully with them in the processing of my charge in accordance with their procedures.

| swear or affirm that | have read the above charge and that it is true to

| declare under penalty of pefjury that above is true and cormrect. | the best of my knowledge, information and belief.
SIGNATURE OF COMPLAINANT

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TO BEFORE ME THIS DATE
(month, day, yean
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EEOC Form 5 (5/01)

CHARGE OF DISu . <IMINATION: Charge Presented To: Agency(ies) Charge No(s):
This form is affected by the Privacy Act of 1974. See enclosed Privacy Act D FEPA
Statement and other information before complefing this form.
. EEOC 440-2007-06461

{llinois Department Of Human Rights " and EEOC
State or jocal Agency, if any

Name (indicate Mr., Ms., Mrs.) Home Phone {incl. Area Code) Date of Birth

Ms. Patty Young {773) 8211787 08-08-1956

Street Address City, State and ZIP Code

5 East Brayton, Chicago, 1L 60628

Named is the Employer, Labor Organization, Employment Agency, Apprenticeship Commitiee, or State or Local Government Agency That | Believe
Discriminated Against Me or Others. (If more than two, list under PARTICULARS below.)

Name No. Empioyses, Members Phone No. (Include Area Code)
CITY OF CHICAGO DEPT OF TRANSPORATI 500 or More (312) 746-6371
Street Address City, State and ZIP Code

30 N. Lasalle Street, 2nd Floor, Chicago, IL 60602

Name No. Employses, Mambers Phone No. {include Area Code)
Street Address City, State and ZIP Code

DATE(S) DISCRIMINATION TOOK PLACE
Earliest Latest

D RACE D COLOR D SEX D RELIGION D NATIONAL ORIGIN 02-01-2007 07-15-2007
' RETALIATION D AGE [:] DISABILITY D OTHER (Specify below.)_'

DISCRIMINATION BASED ON (Check appropriate box{es).)

CONTINUING AGTION

THE PARTICULARS ARE (¥f additional paper is needed, attach exira sheet(s}):

| engaged in protecied activity. -As a result, | have been disciplined and subjected to different terms and
conditions.

| believe | am being discriminated against for engaging in protected activity, in vioclation of Title Vi of the Civil
Rights Act of 1984, as amended. ’

JUL 2 5§ 7007

i 9;!"%}"“‘?""5"‘4";"*'"

S
: :
LS R BT g ?"5‘.,33‘,

1 want this charge filed with both the EEOC and the State or local Agency, if any. 1 NOTARY ~ When necessary for State and Local Agency Requirements

will advise the agencies if | change my address or phone number and | will cooperate

fully with them in the processing of my charge in accordance with their procedures.
| swear or affinn that | have read the above charge and that it is true to

the best of my knowledge, information and belief.
SIGNATURE OF COMPLAINANT

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TC BEFORE ME THIS DATE
{monih, day, year}
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EEOG Form 5 (5/01) -

- L "'..N "
CHARGE OF DISUKIMINATION Charge Presented To: Ageney(ies) Charge No(s):
This form Is affected by the Privacy Act of 1974. Sae enclossd Privacy Act
Sﬁbmentanﬁh;infgarzgyaﬁongefom ccmﬁe?i?:g%iis fox i E FEPA
[X] eeoc 440-2009-03287

" and EEOC

State or local Agency, Fany

Name (indicate Mr., Ms., Mis.) Home Phone (fncl. Area Code) Dazte of Birth
Ms. Patty Young {773) 821-4041 08-08-1956

Sireef Address City, Stete and ZIP Cods
5 East Brayton, Chicago, IL 80628

Named is the Employer, Labor Organization, Employment Agency, Apprenticeship Commities, or State or L ocal Government Agency That | Believe
Discriminated Against Mie or Others. (¥ more than fwo, fst under PARTICULARS below.)

Nams No. Employess, Members Phone No. {inciude Arez Code}
CITY OF CHICAGO DEPT. OF TRANSPORTION 201 - 500 {312} 746-6371
Strest Address . Ciiy, Sizts and ZIP Code

2350 W. Ogden, Chicago, IL 60608

Name No. Employees, Members Phone No. {iaclude Area Code)
Street Adtiress Cty, State and ZIP Cods

“DISCRIMINATION BASED ON (Check approgriate boxfes).) DATE(S) DISCRIMINATION TOOK PLACE
Earliest Latest

[] RACE D GOLOR D SEX D RELIGION D NATIONAL ORIGIN 01-28-2009

[ X | RETALATION , [ AGE D DISABILITY f OTHER (Specify hefow)

E] CONTINUING ACTION

THE PARTICULARS ARE (¥ additionaf paper is needed, atfach exira shesi{s)):

| began employment on or about March 18, 1888, My most recent position was Field Service Specialist I1l. |
previously fiied charges of discrimination, the most recent being Charge # 440-2007-064681. On or about

January 28, 2008 [ was discharged.

l'beﬁevé | have been retaliated against for engaging in a protected activity, in violation of Tiile VIl of the Civil
Rights Act of 1984, as amanded.

| want this charge filed witn both the EEOC and the State or local Ageney, if any. | NOTARY — When necessary for Siate and Locaf Ageacy Requirements

will advise the agencies if | change my address or phone number and | will cooperate

fully with them in the processing of my charge in accordance with their procedures. _
| swear or affirm that | have read the above charge and that it is trus fo
the best of my knowledge, information and beliel

SIGNATURE OF COMPLAINANT o

| declare under pe

' SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TO BEFORE ME THIS DATE
War 12, 2008 I7AYS (month, day, yesn)

AL >
Dete . WCEI GgPartny’gnamre/_ \
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V.
City of Chicago — Department of Transportation
30 Norih La Saile Street, 2 Fioor
ChiC&gO. L. 60602 ! Respondent

DETERMINATION

Under the authority vested in me by the Procedural Regulations of the Equal Employment
Opportunity Commission (EEQQ), I issue the following determination on the merits of the
subject charges filed under Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended (Title VII).

The Respondent is an employer within the meaning of Title VII, and all requirements for
coverage have been met.

The Charging Party alleged that she was discriminated against because of her race, Black, and
sex, female, in that she was subjected to harassment, in violation of Title VII. Charging Party
also alleged that she was retaliated against for engaging in protected activity, in that she was
- disciplined, subjected to different terms and conditions of employment, and discharged, n
violation of Title VIL

I have determined that the evidence obtained in the investigation establishes reasonable cause 10
believe that Respondent discriminated against a class of employees, including Charging Party, in
that they were subjected to harassment of their race, Black, and/or their sex, female, in violation

of Title VIL

I have also determined that the evidence obtained in the investigation establishes reasonable
cause to believe Respondent retaliated against a class of employees, including Charging Party,
for engaging in protected activity, in that they were disciplined and subjected to different terms
and conditions of employment, in violation of Title VIL.



Case 1:10-cv-00989 Document1 Filed 02/12/10 Page 45 of 49

Determination
Charge Numbers 440-2007-02436, 440-2007-06461, and 440-2009-03287

Page 2

I have further determined that the evidence obtained in the investigation establishes reasonable
cause to believe that Charging Party was retaliated against for engaging in protected activity, in
that she was discharged, in violation of Title VIL

Like and related to the charge and arising during the course of the investigation, I have
determined that the evidence obtained in the investigation establishes reasonable cause to believe
Respondent discriminated against a class of employees because of their national origin, in that
they were denied an environment free of ethnic harassment, in violation of Title VIL T

Like and related to the charge and arising during the course of the investigation, 1 have
determined that the evidence obtained in the investigation establishes reasonable cause to believe
Respondent discriminated against a class of employees, including Charging Party, in that they
were subjected to ward assignments because of their race, Black, in violation of Title VIL

This determination is final. When the Commission finds that violations have occurred, it
attempts to eliminate unlawful practices by informal methods of conciliation. Therefore, I invite
the parties to join with the Commission in reaching a just resolution of this matter. Disclosure of
information obtained by the Commission during the conciliation process will be made only in
accordance with the Commission’s Procedural Regulations (29 C.F.R. Part 1601.26).

If the Respondent wishes to accept this invitation fo participate in conciliation efforts, it may do
so at this time by proposing terms for a conciliation agreement; that proposal should be provided
to the Commission representative within 14 days of the date of this determination. The remedies
for violations of the statutes we enforce are designed to make the identified victims whole and to
provide corrective and preventive relief. These remedies may include, as appropriate, an
agreement by the Respondent not to engage in unlawful employment practices, placement of
identified victims in positions they would have held but for discriminatory actions, back pay,
restoration of lost benefits, injunctive relief, compensatory and/or punitive damages, and notice
to employees of the violation and the resolution of the claim.

Should the Respondent have further questions regarding the conciliation process or the
conciliation terms it would like to propose, we encourage it to contact the assigned Commission
representative. Should there be no response from the Respondent in 14 days, we may conclude
{hat further conciliation efforis would be futile or nonproductive.

On Behalf of the Commuission:

i . N oa s VAR
(] =z £ - b el
P"!—"/ .Y‘} , (7 {'j'é.;/{{'b/;,-'L f . (] é‘:j{‘,‘u.——{;‘
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EEOC Fom 161-A (328) U.S. EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY COMMISSION

NOTICE OF RIGHT TO SUE
(CONCILIATION FAILURE)

To: Patty Young From: Chicago District Office
5 East Brayton 500 West Madison St
Chicago, IL 60628 ) : Suite 2000

Chicago, IL 60661
CERTIFIED MAIL 7001 0320 0005 8565 9432

On behalf of person(s) aggrieved whose identity is
CONFIDENTIAL (29 CFR §1601.7{a))

EEOC Charge No. ) EEOC Representative - . Telephone No.
Susan L. Smith,

440-2007-02436 Investigator ' (312) 353-0897

TO THE PERSON AGGRIEVED:

This notice concludes the EEOC’s processing of the above-numbered charge. The EEOC found reasonable cause to believe
that violations of the statute(s) occurred with respect to some or all of the matters alleged in the charge but could not obtain a
settlement with the Respondent that would provide relief for you. In addition, the EEOC has decided that it will not bring suit
against the Respondent at this time based on this charge and will close its file in this case. This does not mean that the EEOC
is certifying that the Respondent is in compliance with the law, or that the EEOC will not sue the Respondent later or intervene
later in your lawsuit if you decide fo sue on your own behalf.

- NOTICE OF SUIT RIGHTS -

(See the additional information attached to this form.)

Title VI, the Americans with Disabilities Act, and/or the Age Discrimination in Employment Act: This will be the only
notice of dismissal and of your right to sue that we will send you. You may file a lawsuit against the respondent(s) under
federal law based on this charge in federal or state court. Your lawsuit must be filed WITHIN 90 DAYS of your receipt
of this notice; or your right to sue based on this charge will be lost. (The time limit for filing suit based on a state claim may
be different.

Equal Pay Act (EPA): EPA suits must be filed in federal or state court within 2 years (3 years for williul violations) of the
alleged EPA underpayment. This means that backpay due for any violations that occurred more than 2 years (3 vears)

before you file suit may not be collectible.

if you file suit, based on this charge, please send a copy of your court complaint to this office.

On behalf of the Commission

(ﬂww/\ P Povt  1)ishs

Enclosures(s) John P. Rowe, (Date Mailed)

District Director
cc. CITY OF CHICAGO
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EEOC Form 167-A (3/98) U.S. EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY COMMISSION

NOTICE OF RIGHT TO SUE
(CONCILIATION FAILURE)

To: Patty Young From: Chicago District Office
5 East Brayfon 500 West Madison St
Chicago, IL 60628 Suife 2000

Chicago, IL 60661
CERTIFIED MAIL 7001 0320 0005 8565 9425

On behalf of person(s) aggrieved whose identity is
CONFIDENTIAL (28 CFR §1601.7(a))

EEQC Charge No. EEQC Representative Telephone No.
Susan L. Smith,
440-2007-06461 investigator (312) 353-0897

TO THE PERSON AGGRIEVED:

This notice concludes the EEOC's procassing of the above-numbered charge. The EEOC found reasonable cause to believe
that violations of the statuie(s) occurred with respect fo some or all of the matters alleged in the charge but could not obtain a
settlement with the Respondent that would provide relief for you. in addition, the EEOC has decided that it will not bring suit
against the Respondent at this time based on this charge and will close its fiile in this case. This does not mean that the EEOC
is certifying that the Respondent is in compliance with the Jaw, or that the EEOC will not sue the Respondent later or intervene
later in your lawsuit if you decide fo sue on your own behalf.

- NOTICE OF SUIT RIGHTS -

(See the additional information attached o this form.)

Title V11, the Americans with Disabilities Act, and/or the Age Discrimination in Employment Act: This will be the only
notice of dismissal and of your right to sue that we will send you. You may file a lawsuit against the respondeni(s) under
federal law based on this charge in federal or state court. Your lawsuit must be filed WITHIN 90 DAYS of your receipt
of this notice; or your right to sue based on this charge will be lost. (The time limit for filing suit based on a state claim may

be different.

Equal Pay Act (EPA): EPA suits must be filed in federal or state court within 2 vears (3 years for wiliful violations) of the
alleged EPA underpayment. This means that backpay due for any violations that occurred more than 2 vears (3 years)

before you file suit may not be collectibie.

If you file suit, based on this charge, please send a copy of your court complaint to this office.

On behalf of the Commission

Nt P Fawl /4o 4

Enclosures(s) John P. Rowe, (Date Mailed)
District Director

cc:  CITY OF CHICAGC DEPT. OF TRANSPORATION
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EEOC Form 161-A (/98) U.S. EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY CONMMISSION
NOTICE OF RIGHT TO SUE
(CONCILIATION FAILURE)
To; Patty Young - From: Chicago District Office
5 East Brayfon 500 West Madison St
Chicago, IL 80628 Suite 2600

Chicago, iL 60861
CERTIEIED MAIL 7001 0320 0005 8585 9418

On behalf of person(s) aggrieved whose idenfiiy is
CONFIDENTIAL (28 CFR §1601.7(5))

EEOC Charge No. EEOC Representiztive Telephone No.
Susan L. Smith,

440-2008-03287 investigator {312)'353-0897

TO THE PERSON AGGRIEVED:

This notice concludes the EEOC's processing of the above-numbered charge. The EEOC found ressonable cause fo belisve
that violations of the statute(s) occurred with respect fo some or all of the matiers alieged in the charge but could not obtain a
setiiement with the Respondent that would provide refief for you. in addition, the EEOC has decided that it will not bring suit
against the Respondent at this fime based on this charge and will close its file-in this case. This does not mean that the EEOC
is cerfifying that the Respondent is in compliance with the law, or that the EECC will not sue the Respondent later or intervene
later in your lawsuit if you decide o sue on your own behalf.

- NOTIGE OF SUIT RIGHTS -

{See the addfiional information attaghed fo fhis form.)

Title V11, the Americans with Disabiiities Act, andfor the Age Discrimination in Employment Act: This will be the only
notice of dismissal and of your right To sue that we will send you. You may file a tawsuit against the respondent(s) under
jederal law based on this charge in faderal or state court. Your lawsuit must be filed WITHIN 80 DAYS of your receipt
of this notice; or your right fo sue based on this charge will be lost. (The ime fimit for filing suit based on a state claim may
be different.

Equal Pay Act (EPA}): EPA suits must be filed in federal or state court within 2 years (3 years for willful violations) of the
alleged EPA underpayment. This means that backpay due for any violations that occurred more than 2 vears (3 vears)
before you file suit may not be collectible.

 you file suit, based on this charge, please send a copy of your court complaint to this office.
On behalf of the Comimission

00 £ Lo 18Jog

M 7
John P. Rowe, (Date Mailed)
District Director

aEnciosures(s)

cc: CITY OF CHICAGO




